
TOWN OF JEROME 
 

																			POST	OFFICE	BOX	335,	JEROME,	ARIZONA	86331	
(928)	634-7943								FAX	(928)	634-0715	

Founded	1876	 	
																						Incorporated	1899	

Jerome Town Hall Located at 600 Clark Street, Jerome Civic Center 

AGENDA  
 

REGULAR MEETING* OF THE JEROME TOWN COUNCIL 
JEROME CIVIC CENTER - 600 CLARK STREET - COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

TUESDAY, AUGUST 21, 2018, AT 7:00 P.M. 
*continuation of the August 14, 2018 regular meeting which was adjourned due to a power outage 

Due to the length of this meeting, Council may recess and reconvene at the time and date announced. 
Pursuant to A.R.S. 38-431.02 notice is hereby given to the members of the Council and to the General Public that the Jerome Town Council plans to 
hold the above meeting.  

Persons with a disability may request an accommodation such as a sign language interpreter by contacting Joni Savage, Deputy Clerk, at 928-634-
7943. Requests should be made early enough to allow time to arrange the accommodation. For TYY access, call the Arizona Relay Service at 800-
367-8939 and ask for the Town of Jerome at 928-634-7943. 

A copy of the full public meeting packet may be reviewed at the offices of Jerome Town Hall during normal business hours. 

ITEM #1: CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Mayor/Chairperson to call meeting to order. 
Town Clerk to call and record the roll. 
Mayor or Mayor’s designee to lead the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

ITEM #2 FINANCIAL REPORTS 
Budget to Actual reports, vendor ledger and balance sheet for July 2018  

Discussion/Possible Action 

ITEM #3: 
 

STAFF AND COUNCIL REPORTS 
Written staff reports by the Town Manager/Clerk, Deputy Town Clerk, Utilities Clerk, 
Accounting Clerk, Public Works Department, Building Inspector, Library, Municipal Court, 
Police Chief, and Fire Chief, and verbal reports from Council members.  Discussion/Possible Action 

ITEM #4: PLANNING AND ZONING AND DESIGN REVIEW MINUTES/ 
RECOMMENDATIONS/ZONING ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
Minutes are provided for the information of Council and do not require action.  Discussion/Possible 

Direction 

ITEM #5: PETITIONS FROM THE PUBLIC 
Pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.01(H), public comment is permitted on matters not listed on the agenda but the 
subject matter must be within the jurisdiction of the Council. All comments are subject to reasonable time, place 
and manner restrictions. All petitioners must fill out a request form with their name and subject matter. When 
recognized by the chair, please step to the podium, state your name and please observe the three (3) minute 
time limit. No petitioners will be recognized without a request. The Council’s response to public comments is 
limited to asking staff to review a matter commented upon, asking that a matter be put on a future agenda, or 
responding to criticism. Discussion/Possible 

Direction 

ITEM #6: CONSENT AGENDA  

 The following items are considered to be routine and non-controversial by the Council and 
will be approved by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a 
Council member so requests, in which case the item will be removed from the Consent 
Agenda and considered in normal sequence on the Agenda. 
     A.   Council Meeting Minutes:  

• July 31, 2018 special meeting 
• July 10, 2018 regular meeting  
• May 15, 2018 special meeting  
• May 2, 2018 special meeting  
• April 23, 2018 special meeting  
• March 27, 2018 special meeting  
• March 7, 2018 special meeting  
• June 29, 2017 special meeting 
• June 12, 2017 special meeting 

B.  RENEWAL OF EMPLOYMENT AGREEMENT: MUNICIPAL MAGISTRATE 
 Council may approve a renewed employment agreement with Municipal 

Magistrate Joan Dwyer, covering the period July 1, 2018 through June 30, 2020.  
Sponsored by Mayor Frank 
Vander Horst 
Possible Action 



   Regular Meeting of August 14, 2018 
 

2 

 
ITEM #7: ORDINANCES  

 FIRST READING: ORDINANCE NO. 440, AN ORDINANCE OF THE MAYOR AND 
COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF JEROME, YAVAPAI COUNTY, ARIZONA, AMENDING 
SECTION 2-4-1, “REGULAR MEETINGS,” OF THE JEROME TOWN CODE REGARDING 
AVAILABILITY OF COUNCIL MEETING PACKETS 
Council may conduct the first reading of Ordinance No. 440, amending Section 2-4-1 of the 
Town Code to provide that preliminary meeting packets for regular Council meetings will be 
available on the Town website on the Thursday prior to the meeting date, and that the 
agenda may be revised up until 24 hours prior to the meeting.  

Sponsored by Mayor Frank 
Vander Horst 
Discussion; Possible Action 

ITEM #8: UNFINISHED BUSINESS  

 ITEM #8A: GARBAGE COLLECTION AND RECYCLING OPTIONS 
Council will review recommendations by the Public Works Director and Town Manager 
regarding garbage collection and recycling options, and may direct staff in this regard. 

Sponsored by Mayor Frank 
Vander Horst 
Discussion; Possible Action 

ITEM #9: NEW BUSINESS  

 ITEM #9A: CONDITIONAL USE PERMITS– 433 CELLARS 
Council may approve Conditional Use Permits for 433 Cellars to (1) provide for outdoor 
service on the patio, and (2) operate a spiritous liquor tasting facility in the expanded space. 
These permits were reviewed by the Planning & Zoning Commission on July 11, 2018, and 
recommended for approval by Council, with certain conditions.  

Sponsored by Mayor Frank 
Vander Horst 
Discussion; Possible Action 

 ITEM #9B: WATER AND SEWER RATE STRUCTURE 
Council will discuss possible changes to the water and sewer rate structure to provide for 
billing by metered usage.  

Sponsored by Mayor Frank 
Vander Horst 
Discussion; Possible 
Direction 

 ITEM #9C: FREEPORT-MCMORAN FUNDING 
Council will discuss the Town’s application for FY19 funding from the Freeport-McMoRan 
Copper and Gold Foundation, and may determine what project(s) to list in the application.  

Sponsored by Mayor Frank 
Vander Horst 
Discussion; Possible Action 

ITEM #10: TO AND FROM THE COUNCIL 
Council may direct staff as to items of pending importance that they would like placed on a 
future meeting agenda. Discussion; Possible 

Direction 

ITEM #11: ADJOURNMENT  

 
The Town Council may recess the public meeting and convene in Executive Session for the purpose of discussion or consultation for legal advice with the Town Attorney, who may 
participate telephonically, regarding any item listed on this agenda pursuant to A.R.S. § 38-431.03 (A)(3). 
The Chair reserves the right, with the consent of Council, to take items on the agenda out of order. 
 

CERTIFICATION OF POSTING OF NOTICE 
The undersigned hereby certifies that this notice and agenda was posted at the following locations on or before _________ p.m. on __________________________, in accordance with 
the statement filed by the Jerome Town Council with the Jerome Town Clerk. 
 

 

970 Gulch Road, side of Gulch Fire Station, exterior posting case 
600 Clark Street, Jerome Town Hall, exterior posting case 
120 Main Street, Jerome Post office, interior posting case  

 
___________________________________ 
Joni Savage, Deputy Town Clerk 





































































































































































































 
TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA 

 
POST OFFICE BOX 335, JEROME, ARIZONA 86331 

(928) 634-7943   FAX (928) 634-0715 
 
   Founded 1876 
Incorporated 1899   

  For TTY Access, Call the Arizona Relay Service at 1-800-367-8939 and ask for Town of Jerome at 928-634-7943   

Jerome Town Hall Located at 600 Clark Street, Jerome Civic Center 

DRAFT MINUTES 
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE JEROME TOWN COUNCIL 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS, JEROME TOWN HALL 
TUESDAY, MAY 15, 2018    6:00 PM TO 8:00 PM  

 

ITEM #1: 
6:00 pm 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Mayor/Chairperson to call meeting to order. 

Vice Mayor Kinsella called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.   
Town Clerk to call and record the roll. 

Town Manager/Clerk Candace Gallagher called roll. Present were Mayor Vander Horst, 
Vice Mayor Kinsella, Councilmember Bachrach, Councilmember Barber and 
Councilmember Currier.   
Also present was Joni Savage, Deputy Clerk. 

Mayor/Chairperson or designee to lead the Pledge of Allegiance.  
Mayor Vander Horst led the pledge. 

ITEM #2: 
6:01 pm 

REVISED GENERAL PLAN 
Council will discuss possible changes to the Revised General Plan as approved by the Planning 
& Zoning Commission and may direct staff in this regard. No action will be taken at this meeting 
to adopt the plan or to re-adopt the existing plan. That may take place at a future public 
meeting.  

Council resumed their discussion of the draft Revised General Plan. During discussion, 
Council heard comments regarding the language of the Plan from Natalie Barlow, Jane 
Moore and Suzy Mound. 
Ultimately, it was determined that the following changes would be made by Ms. Gallagher, 
and that the Revised Plan would then come to Council for final approval at the next 
regular meeting. 
• On page 23, “topography” will be added as a factor influencing land use in Jerome. 
• On page 25, a reference to a goal of developing a dark sky ordinance will be changed 

to, “Encourage the use of dark sky-compliant lighting whenever possible, with 
consideration to existing historic lighting equipment.” 

• On page 26, Paragraph C, insert the word “health,” so that it reads, “Provide and 
maintain high-quality effectiveness and efficiency in law enforcement, health, fire and 
emergency services …” 

• On page 27, Goal 2, Paragraph A, the word “industrial” will be added, so that it reads, 
“Create and maintain the proper balance of separate areas primarily devoted to 
residential, commercial, industrial, agricultural and public land uses. 

• On page 29, the third bullet point under the picture of the flume, which reads “Develop 
policies and incentives for reclaimed water and rainwater harvesting systems,” will be 
changed to read, “Develop policies and incentives for water conservation, such as 
reclaimed water and rainwater harvesting systems.” Also, under Paragraph E, the first 
bullet point will be changed to “Provide workshops to educate and encourage 
property owners to implement water conservation strategies on their properties.” 

• On page 32, a reference to cultivating a relationship between the Town and the Verde 
Canyon Railroad will be eliminated.  

• On page 36, change “Establish a shuttle service …” to “Maintain and improve a shuttle 
service …” and eliminate the words “newly created” in that phrase.  

 



             Special Meeting of May 15, 2018 
 

2 

• Also on page 36, add a new paragraph 8 under “Recommendations,” to read: 
“Maintain and improve handicapped parking and access.”  

• On page 37, regarding pedestrian walkways, change “The Town must maintain …” in 
the last line of the first paragraph to “The Town must assure the maintenance of …”  

• Also on page 37, in paragraph 2 under “Recommendations,” change the word “will” to 
“could,” to read: “… which could also connect to regional trail plans.  

• On page 40, Goal 4, Paragraph C, was changed from “Make affordable housing a 
priority,” to “Encourage development of affordable housing.”  

• On page 45, a footnote will be added, stating that, when the Town Council was first 
established, regulations were established that required buildings in the commercial 
zone to be fire-resistant. 

• Pages 59 through 62, “Zoning Administrator Design Review Guidelines,” will be removed 
altogether.  

ITEM #3: 
7:30 p.m. 

ADJOURNMENT 
 MOVED SECONDED AYE NAY ABSENT ABSTAIN 

BACHRACH   X    

BARBER   X    

CURRIER x  X    

KINSELLA  x X    

VANDER HORST   X    

 

Edited by Town Manager/Clerk Candace Gallagher from minutes taken and transcribed by Deputy Town Clerk Joni Savage. 

     APPROVE: ATTEST:  

 

     _______________________________________________  _______________________________________________ 
     Frank Vander Horst, Mayor  Candace B. Gallagher, CMC, Town Manager/Clerk 

 Date:  ________________________________________  

 











 
TOWN OF JEROME, ARIZONA 

 
POST OFFICE BOX 335, JEROME, ARIZONA 86331 

(928) 634-7943   FAX (928) 634-0715 
 
   Founded 1876 
Incorporated 1899   

DRAFT MINUTES 
SPECIAL MEETING OF THE JEROME TOWN COUNCIL: COUNCIL RETREAT 

JEROME FIRE STATION 
TUESDAY, MARCH 27, 2018 AT 12:00 P.M.  

 
ITEM #1: 
12:15 pm 

CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Mayor/Chairperson to call meeting to order. 

Mayor Vander Horst called the meeting to order at 12:15 p.m. 

Town Clerk to call and record the roll. 

Roll call did not occur. Present were Mayor Vander Horst, Vice Mayor Kinsella, Councilmember Barber, 
Councilmember Currier and Councilmember Bachrach.   

Staff present were Kyle Dabney, Zoning Administrator, Candace Gallagher, Town Clerk/Manager, 
Melanie Atkin, Accounting Clerk, Martin Boland, Public Works Director, Rusty Blair Fire Department Chief, 
Kathleen Jarvis, Head Librarian, and Joni Savage, Deputy Clerk.  Henry MacVittie of Contract 
Wastewater Operations arrived at 1:08 p.m. 

Mayor or Mayor’s designee to lead the Pledge of Allegiance. 
There was no pledge said. 

ITEM #2: 
12:15 pm 

AUDIT: FY2017 
Representatives of Colby & Powell will present audited financial statements for FYE 6-30-17. Following the 
presentation, Council may vote to accept the audit.  

Jim Usevitch of Colby & Powell presented the audit1, which he said went very smoothly. He stated that: 

• This was the first time since he has been our auditor that the audit has been completed prior to 
the March 31 deadline.  

• There were a few departments where the budget was slightly exceeded, but the overall 
budget was fine.  

• The audit went very well, and only required three or four journal entries. Usually, there is a page 
and a half.  

• The Town is “in the black,” and in a good situation, with cash in the bank of about $800,000. 
Our fund balance is almost $900,000.  

• It was noted that we have assets valued on the books at the purchase price, but their fair 
market value is considerably greater, as is our true fund balance. 

• When asked about our net pension asset in PSPRS, he said that Jerome is one of just a handful 
of cities with an asset rather than a liability. It will decrease as police officers gain tenure, but 
this is not something we need to worry about at present. “You’re in a ten times better situation 
than most cities and towns,” he said. 

Motion: Upon motion by Vice Mayor Kinsella, seconded by Councilmember Currier and 
unanimously approved, the audit for FY2017 was ACCEPTED. 

ITEM #3: 
12:41 

DISCUSSION OF PRIORITIES FOR 2018-19 
Council will engage in an open discussion regarding their priorities for the next fiscal year. Staff has been 
invited to participate. 

This portion of the meeting was led by a facilitator, Dr. Jack Dillenberg, a Town resident and an expert in 
public health.   
What follows is a condensed summary of the points brought up. The full discussion is available on the 
audio recording, which is considered a part of these minutes. 

Council heard from staff regarding their priorities, as follows:  

12:41 p.m. Marty Boland, Public Works Director: 
• New valves for regulators (up to four at $6,000 each), and upgrading regulator boxes. 

                                                
1 A copy of the audit document will be placed on permanent file with these minutes. 



 Special Meeting of March 27, 2018 
 
 

2 

Estimated cost for three regulators - $20,000.  

• Work on a manhole on Douglas Road. No cost figures available at this time. 
• Purchasing a water truck, ideally a short-bed, 4WD with a tool box, so that all tools needed for 

water work would be in one vehicle. 

• He saw no need to increase the size of the crew (currently at five) and feels that we can get 
through another year with the garbage truck as long as it is maintained. 

• He suggested trading the skid steer for a gannon.  

Also discussed with Mr. Boland was sidewalk repairs in general and repairing the wall below School 
Street. All agreed that projects should be contracted out when necessary. 
 
1:46 p.m. Henry MacVittie, Contract Wastewater Operations:  

• Will need to budget for the one springs project that will not be complete by end of this fiscal 
year – the syphon line through Mescal Canyon. 

• Clean and inspect Sunshine Hill water tanks.  
• Expenses to attempt to meet new standards for ammonia and copper levels in our effluent - 

$12,000. He suggested that we begin to look at alternate methods of disposal, rather than 
putting our effluent into Bitter Creek, such as subsurface leach fields.  

• He spoke of the importance of developing a plan for alternate sources of water in the event 
that flows drop off in the future. 

Also discussed with Mr. MacVittie was the inevitability of needing to expand our treatment plant at some 
point in the future, and improving the road to the facility.  
 
2:40 p.m. Kathleen Jarvis, Librarian:  

• New Community Arts Program to replace the existing Kids Art Workshop program. It would 
serve children and adults alike, and would be a part of Library budget. The person running the 
program would also function as a part-time library staffer - $3,000 to $5,000 per year, some of 
which would be funded by donations.  

 
~ 3:00 p.m. Ms. Gallagher suggested that Council might want to move at this time to the agenda item 
addressing appointments to the boards. Motion to do so was made by Vice Mayor Kinsella, seconded 
by Councilmember Currier and unanimously approved. Item #4 was addressed at this time but is 
reflected in these minutes as originally agendized. 
 
The meeting then returned to the discussion of priorities. 
 
3:14 p.m. Honorable Judge Dwyer:   

• Implementing new requirements for security standards will be necessary beginning next year. 
Various security measures were discussed. 

• The Court’s triennial audit will be coming up this year.   
• Court revenues will remain about the same.  

 
3:25 p.m. Melanie Atkin, Accounting Clerk   

• There was discussion about the possibility of charging for water usage based on consumption.  
• It was noted that the Town is looking into alternative payroll providers. 

 
3:35 Kyle Dabney, Zoning Administrator   

• Continued use of GIS software ($400/year) 
• Grant submission for drainage projects 

  
3:45 Rusty Blair, Chief Jerome Fire Department   

• Requests a new full-time employee – Duty Officer.  
• Requests continued funding for fuel abatement ($10,000). 
• Requests increase in Town’s contribution to pension fund, and possible increase in per call rate.  
• Discussed wildlands activity. 
• Grant match for new pumper truck ($25,000). 
• JFD has had a 1991 pumper given to them, which will replace the 1961 truck. It will help 

maintain our ISO rating of 4, which benefits residents.  
• Applying for $80,000 grant for SCBA’s. If we don’t get it, will need to purchase 12 sets at $1,500 

each. 
• Has also applied for funding from Firehouse Subs for five sets of turnout gear, and has asked the 



 Special Meeting of March 27, 2018 
 
 

3 

100 Club for funds for new wildlands gear.  
 
At this time, Council took a ten-minute break. 
 
4:39 p.m.  Town Manager/Clerk Candace Gallagher  

• Spoke about fund balance. 
• Will draft the budget to include a 2% wage increase as a beginning point for discussion. 

Discussion followed and the Mayor suggested we look at increases individually, between 3% 
and 5%. 

• Noted that the Town’s contribution to the retirement savings for non-police full time personnel 
(5%) is considerably less than the contribution to the police pension fund (over 14%). Chief Blair 
had suggested increasing that to make it more equitable. 

• Suggested the possibility of eliminating property taxes ($47,500).  
 
The Council then discussed their individual priorities. Suggestions from each member are summarized 
below.  
 
Councilmember Barber: 

• Safety railing along sidewalks where children and pets could fall through. 
• Water, sewer, sidewalks and streets. 
• Great police visibility on busy weekends. 

 
Mayor Vander Horst: 

• Implementation of the recommendations of the NAU parking study. 
• Unarmed volunteer persons to act with the Police Department as “Citizens On Patrol.” 
• Preserving our historical structures; purchasing if necessary and restoring, then selling them.  
• Repairs to the steps next to the Old Town Hall. 
• Compliance with ADA requirements re: handicapped parking spaces. 
• Purchase of a new shuttle van for the weekend shuttle service.  
• Installation of parking kiosks, similar to those in Sedona. 

 
Vice Mayor Kinsella:  

• Fencing in front of the recycle trailer. 
• Infrastructure. 
• Purchase if possible of the parking area across from Bobby D’s (currently leased by the Town). 
• Educating our visitors that RVs can only park at the 300 Level, and signage to indicate that. 

Asking our police to ticket those that do not comply.  
• Bringing in a nurse or nurse practitioner and having the Verde Valley Medical Center pay for 

that. 
 
Councilmember Bachrach: 

• Infrastructure, water, sewer, roads and sidewalks. Center Street needs help badly.  
• Hotel Jerome: lead-based paint abatement and new windows. He mentioned the possibility 

of creating four apartments on the second floor.  
o Dr. Dillenberg suggested exploring the possibility of assisted living there. 
o Chief Blair noted that apartments will require a fire escape and sprinklers. 

• Bringing in a grantwriter. 
• Hiring a properties/project manager. 
• Creating parking at the old Town Yard.  
• A cinder spreader for Public Works. 

  
Councilmember Currier: 

• Bringing in a Town nurse. 
• Work on the street behind Town Hall leading to the Humane Society clinic. 
• Replacement of a missing window over the library. 

 
It was agreed that the first budget meeting will take place in early May.  

ITEM #4: 
3:03 

APPOINTMENTS TO FILL EXPIRED TERMS ON PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION, DESIGN REVIEW 
BOARD AND BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT 



 Special Meeting of March 27, 2018 
 
 

4 

Terms of the following appointees expired as of February 28, 2018: 
Planning and Zoning Commission – Margie Hardie and Zachariah Runyon; Design Review Board – John 
Schroeder and Mark Venker; Board of Adjustment – Jane Moore and Suzy Mound. Council may take action 
to reappoint these members, or other individuals, to succeeding three-year terms. 

It was noted that Mark Venker has resigned from the Design Review Board, and that Zachariah Runyon 
has not been attending meetings of the Planning & Zoning Commission.  

Since the preparation of the agenda, Danny Smith had applied to serve on the Design Review Board.  

Motion: Mayor Vander Horst made a motion to re-appoint Margie Hardie to the Planning & Zoning 
Commission. It was seconded by Vice Mayor Kinsella and unanimously approved.  
Motion:  Councilmember Barber made a motion to re-appoint John Schroeder to the Design 
Review Board and the motion was seconded by Councilmember Currier. The motion passed with 4 
ayes and 1 nay. (It is unclear on the recording who cast the dissenting vote.) 

Danny Smith was present, and explained his background to the Council why he wanted to serve on the 
Design Review Board.  

Mr. Dabney recommended his appointment.   
Motion: Councilmember Bachrach made a motion to appoint Danny Smith to the Design Review 
Board. It was seconded by Vice Mayor Kinsella and unanimously approved.  
Motion:  Councilmember Barber made a motion to re-appoint Jane Moore and Suzy Mound to the 
Board of Adjustment. The second was made by Councilmember Currier and the . The motion 
passed with 4 ayes and 1 nay. (It is unclear on the recording who cast the dissenting vote.) 
Motion: Vice Mayor Kinsella made a motion to remove Zachariah Runyon from the Planning and 
Zoning Commission. The motion was seconded by Councilmember Bachrach and unanimously 
approved.   

ITEM #5: PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING SERVICES 
Council will review proposed rates and terms of a contract with Southwestern Environmental Consultants, Inc. 
of Cottonwood, AZ, and may approve an agreement with the firm for on-call engineering services. 

THIS ITEM WAS NOT ADDRESSED. 
ITEM #6: ADJOURNMENT 

Upon motion by Councilmember Currier, seconded by Councilmember Bachrach and 
unanimously approved, the meeting was adjourned at approximately 6 p.m. 

Edited by Town Manager/Clerk Candace Gallagher from minutes taken and transcribed by Deputy Town Clerk Joni Savage. 

     APPROVE: ATTEST:  

 

    ________________________________________________  _______________________________________________ 
     Frank Vander Horst, Mayor  Candace B. Gallagher, CMC, Town Manager/Clerk 

 Date:  ________________________________________  

 
 
















































	2018-08-21 agenda.pdf
	Council Agenda and Packet 8.14.18 c.pdf
	2018-03-27 Retreat DRAFT minutes .pdf
	Addl packet 8.14.18.pdf



